


 
D. Thurston County Fire Commissioners Association 

Regular meeting              Commissioner Dobry 
 
 

E. Thurston Regional Planning Council 
Status report                Commissioner Dobry 
 
 

F. Community Outreach 
Status report                                             Staff 
 
 

G. Nisqually Tribe  
Status report                Commissioners Kirkbride & Wilson 

 
 

H. Capital Facilities and Equipment Activities                             Staff
               

VI. OLD BUSINESS 
A.   

 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Declaration of Surplus Vehicles:  Discussion/Proposed Action (see Appendix A) 
B. 2017 Response Time Compliance Report:  Discussion/Proposed Adoption (see 

Appendix B) 
C. 2017 Annual Report:  Staff Presentation (see Appendix C) 
D. Resolution #860-04-18 re National Volunteer Recognition Week:  

Discussion/Proposed Adoption (see Appendix D) 
E. Project Management for Capital Facilities Activities:  Discussion/Possible 

Action   
 

VIII. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

IX. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

X. OTHER INFORMATION 
A. Suggestion Box 
B. Correspondence 

  
XI. HEARING OF THE PUBLIC /  MEMBERS PRESENT 

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
THERE WILL BE NO WORKSHOP CONDUCTED THIS EVENING. 

Next Regular Meeting:  April 19, 2018 – 5:30 pm 



















Thurston County Fire Protection District Three  Page 1 of 3 
Special Board Meeting Minutes:  March 29, 2018 

THURSTON COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT THREE 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

March 29, 2018 
Present: 

Chair Kirkbride 
Vice Chair Wilson 

     Commissioner Dobry 
     Commissioner Ryder 

     Commissioner Roberts attended via teleconference.  
I. CALL TO ORDER & FLAG SALUTE 

 
Chair Kirkbride called the meeting to order at 5 p.m. 
 

II. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

III. Deletion – The Executive Session:  RCW 42.30.110(1)(d): Regarding Publicly Bid 
Contracts. 

 
MOTION:  To accept the agenda as amended. 
Motion:  Commissioner Wilson 
Second:  Commissioner Dobry 
Carried:  Unanimous 

IV. HEARING OF THE PUBLIC/ MEMBERS PRESENT 
 
There were no members of the public present.   
 

V. BUSINESS ITEM 
 
A.  Contract for Architectural and Engineering Services:  Discussion/Proposed Action 

(see Appendix A) 
 

Chief Brooks gave a timeline summary of the Capital Facilities and Equipment plan.  
At the last BoFC meeting, the Board discussed the based-on-State-costs proposal 
requested by the Board and submitted by Rice Fergus Miller.  At the conclusion of 
the discussion, the Board asked Rice Fergus Miller to provide additional information 
on proposal costs.  Subsequent to the Board meeting, Rice Fergus Miller had staff 
meetings last week and decided to withdraw their proposal as it was not in alignment 
with how they do business and the way public agencies generally do projects.  Chief 
Brooks reported that he had several conversations with Rice Fergus Miller and 
inquired if they were willing to submit a revised proposal more in alignment with 
their business practices and public agency projects.  The revised proposal is presented 
before the Board.  Chief Brooks expressed his confidence in working with the level of 



Thurston County Fire Protection District Three  Page 2 of 3 
Special Board Meeting Minutes:  March 29, 2018 

project management Rice Fergus Miller contains.  Chief Brooks highlighted staff’s 
efforts on building the Capital Facilities and Equipment Plan for the last two years.  
He highlighted the successful development of the budget and corresponding bond 
request to fund the projects.  He acknowledged staffs’ capacity, knowledge and 
abilities to complete the project with Rice Fergus Miller based on the current 
proposal.  He commented that it’s in the best interest of the District and community to 
move forward with Rice Fergus Miller’s proposal to stay on budget and complete the 
project on time.   

Chief Brooks advised that the District established a good working relationship with 
Rice Fergus Miller from the previous Station 34 remodel project.  He added that they 
are a reputable architecture firm in the fire agency community specializing in Fire-
Emergency facilities.  
 
Commissioner Roberts stated that she is in favor of accepting the proposal presented.  
She commented that she is confident that the project will be done well and on time as 
promised to the community.  She noted that the agreement relieves staffs’ 
responsibility of managing any potential disagreements with the sub-contractors.    
 
Commissioner Dobry stated that he approves moving forward with the agreement 
presented.  He commented that the project cost proposed is within the cost estimate 
and not outside of the extreme.   He noted that staff has spent a good amount of time 
exploring other alternatives and recommended the Board consider staffs’ comfort 
level in managing the project.  He commented that he’s confident in the decision 
making of the Chief and staff.   

 
Commissioner Ryder is in agreement to accept the proposal presented. She expressed 
her concern that Chair Kirkbride is the only Board member familiar with the 
processes of managing a project this size. 
 
Vice Chair Wilson commented that the proposal is reasonable.  She agreed to move 
forward with the agreement.   
 
Chair Kirkbride stated that he does not accept the proposal presented.  He’s not in 
agreement with the 5% subconsultants mark up.  He commented that he does not 
support paying over $600k for the project when the cost can be $200K.  He believes 
the District can save money.  He recommended the District hire a skilled construction 
manager on staff to oversee this process as high priority.  

 
MOTION:  To maintain the service of Rice Fergus Miller as currently proposed in the Standard 
Form of Master Agreement Between Owner and Architect Document B121 -2014 and the 
Service Order for use with the Master Agreement Between Owner and Architect Document 
B221-2014. 
Motion:  Commissioner Roberts 
Second:  Commissioner Dobry 
 
 



Thurston County Fire Protection District Three  Page 3 of 3 
Special Board Meeting Minutes:  March 29, 2018 

Roll call vote. 
Commissioner Dobry YES 
Vice Chair Wilson YES.    
Commissioner Ryder YES 
Commissioner Roberts YES 
Chair Kirkbride NO 
Motion Carried:  4 Yes, 1 No. 

 
Chair Kirkbride requested to add an agenda item at the next regular Board meeting to 
discuss hiring a professional project manager to assist staff with the Capital Facilities 
project.  

Commissioners Roberts and Ryder announced that they will not be attending the next 
regular meeting.  

 
VI. ADJOURN  

  
Chair Kirkbride adjourned the meeting at 5:22 p.m. 

















Payroll Period 03B-18

DIRECT DEPOSIT - KEY BANK 309,665.55

KEY BANK FUNDS TRANSFER TO IRS

FED INCOME TAX DEPOSIT 40,823.01

KEY BANK FUNDS TRANSFER TO IRS

MEDICARE DEPOSIT 10,202.32

KEY BANK FUNDS TRANSFER TO IRS

SOCIAL SECURITY DEPOSIT 0.00

TAX DEPOSIT TOTAL 51,025.33

TOTAL PAYROLL 360,690.88

                               THURSTON COUNTY FIRE DIST. #3

                          MASTER PAYROLL LIST



 

 

LACEY FIRE DISTRICT 
THREE 

Service with Excellence 

COMMISSIONERS 
Eugene W. Dobry, Jr 

K. Frank Kirkbride 
Sylvia Roberts 
Liberty Ryder 

Judy Wilson 
FIRE CHIEF 
Steve Brooks 

 

1231 Franz St. SE Lacey, WA  98503-2412   (360) 491-2410  FAX:  (360) 491-2806 
 

 
 
 

April 5, 2018 
 

Declaration of Surplus Equipment 
 
 
 

 
The following is requested to be deemed surplus to the needs of the District:  
 
 
Item Descriptions:   
 

• 2002 Ford F-550 Brush Truck Chassis 
o VIN:  1FDAF57F62EA31099 
o Mileage:  ~34,000 
o Estimated value:  $10,000 

• 2004 GMC Yukon XL Command Vehicle 
o VIN:  3GKFK16Z64G211032 
o Mileage:  ~95,000 
o Estimated value:  $8,000 

• 2007 Chevrolet Tahoe Command Vehicle 
o VIN:  1GNEK13057J136346 
o Mileage:  ~110,000 
o Estimated value:  $12,000 

 
Reason for Surplus:  These units have reached the end of their scheduled service life based on the adopted 
equipment replacement schedule. 
 
Method of Surplus:  Advertised for sale to highest responsible bidder and/or utilizing the state surplus sale 
process 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 
Lacey Fire District Three 

1231 Franz St SE 
Lacey, WA 98503 

Response Time Compliance Report 
For 2017 

March 2018 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 

-------------------------------------------------------- Page 2 ------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In 2017 Lacey Fire District was dispatched 13,860 times, a call volume about 6% higher than in 
2016.  This number of calls equates to an average of one dispatch about every 38 minutes every 
day during the whole year. Crews from four staffed stations managed the calls with additional 
volunteer response from a fifth station when the volunteer residents were available.    

The average response time (alarm to arrival) for the first arriving District unit at a call (including 
all call types) is 7 minutes 09 seconds. 

The District continues to meet or exceed nearly all of the adopted performance standards and is 
consistently meeting NFPA requirements for assembling sufficient personnel on scene to manage 
a structure fire. 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

In 2005 the Washington State Governor signed House Bill 1756, which required fire service 
agencies to: 

• establish performance measures for service delivery and response time objectives 
• evaluate their performance against their adopted standards on an annual basis based on 

data from each geographical area of the agency 
• report the results to the applicable elected officials as well as to the community 

 
Beginning in 2007, fire service agencies were required to issue an annual written report based on 
their evaluations.  In addition to the evaluation, the report had to contain the predictable 
consequences of any deficiencies and address steps necessary to achieve compliance with the 
established objectives. 
 
This legislation was ultimately codified as Chapter 52.33 RCW Fire Departments – Performance 
Measures, which applies specifically to fire protection districts. 
 
On November 1, 2007, the Lacey Fire District Board of Fire Commissioners adopted Resolution 
Number 783-11-07, which established the District’s Emergency Response Reporting Standards.  
These standards and this report serve as official compliance with Chapter 52.33 RCW and set 
forth our performance measures. 
 
 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 3 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Response Time Compliance 
 
Response time is traditionally thought of as the time it takes the fire service agency to arrive to 
deal with your emergency.  In fact, response time can be divided into a series of subcomponents 
or events, some of which can be quantified and analyzed.  The series, or “cascade” of events 
includes: 

1. Something happens – vehicle accident, fire, heart attack, etc. 

2. Someone calls 9-1-1 

3. 9-1-1- center answers the phone 

4. 9-1-1- center processes the call and alerts the fire service agency 

5. Fire service agency starts enroute to your call 

6. The first fire service agency unit arrives and begins to help with your emergency 

7. All fire service units dispatched arrive to handle your emergency 
 
This “Cascade of Events” can be depicted as shown below: 
 

 
 
Chapter 52.33 RCW requires that fire service agencies set standards and report on three of the 
subcomponents: 
• turnout time (called turnout interval in the above diagram) 

• the time it takes the first unit capable of managing the emergency to arrive (called travel 
interval in the chart above) 

• for a structure fire, the time it takes the full initial alarm assignment time to arrive (referred to 
in the chart above as IFAA time, and is functionally the travel time for all the responding 
apparatus that make up the agency’s full initial alarm assignment) 

 

Emergency 
Event 

Awareness 
 

Public safety 
answering 

point (PSAP) 
receives call 

PSAP 
notifies 

emergency 
responders 

Initial Arriving 
Company 
enroute 

(wheels rolling) 

Initial Arriving 
Company 

arrives 

Turnout 
Time 

 

Alarm 
Time 

Dispatch 
Time 

NFPA 1221 

Travel 
Time 

 
 

Event 
Initiation 

Point 
 

Factors that 
lead to 

calling 911 

Processing 
Interval 

Turnout 
Interval 

 

Travel 
Interval 

 

=   Response Time 

Alarm 
Interval 

 

NFPA 1710 IFAA Time 

+ 
IFAA 
Time 

 

Initial full 
alarm 

assignment 
arrives 

+ 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 4 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Turnout Time 
 
Turnout time is the sub-component of time starting when the units receive notification of an 
emergency and ends when they begin their response.   
 
 
Turnout time has no geographical significance, therefore, the District set the same standard for 
all stations and all units.   The Turnout Time performance standard for Lacey Fire District 
is 3 minutes, 90% of the time.  Another way to make that statement is  90% of the time we will 
be enroute to a call in the District within 3 minutes of being dispatched. 
 
 
An analysis of our response data shows that we far exceed this performance standard, with the 
District being enroute within 3 minutes or less 97% of the time. 
 
 
90% of the time, our turnout time is 2 minutes 17 seconds or less. 
 
 
Our average turnout time – that is, 50% of the time a District unit is enroute to a call – in 1 
minute and 16 seconds or less. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90%

97%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

Performance Standard (3 minutes) % Meeting Standard

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

Turnout Time 2017



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 5 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Response Time (Travel Time) 
 
RCW 52.33 Fire Departments – Performance measures, defines response time as the time 
starting when the units begin to respond to the incident and ending when a unit or units arrive on 
the scene of the incident.   Functionally, this is the time subcomponent where the unit is traveling 
to the incident, so to avoid confusion this report uses the term Travel Time to denote this 
subcomponent.   
 
RCW 52.33 requires: 

• Setting time standards for the travel time for the first unit to arrive at a fire suppression 
incident, an EMS incident, a wildland incident and at a special operations incident. 

• Setting time standards for travel time for a “full first alarm assignment.”  This requires all 
the units the District designates as the first alarm for a structure fire arrive within a 
certain amount of time. 

o For a residential structure fire, Lacey Fire District has established a full first alarm 
assignment that consists of three engine companies, one ladder company, a 
command unit, a medical unit and a Chief Officer.   

• An annual evaluation of the response data based on geographical areas within the District 

• An annual written report of the performance of the District based on the evaluation.  The 
report must also include predictable consequences of any deficiencies and steps necessary 
to achieve compliance with the established time standards. 

Additionally, while many fire agencies report averages, RCW 52.33 specifically requires setting 
the standards that will be achieved 90% of the time.  The 90% requirement provides citizens a 
greater assurance of consistency in service levels. 

 
 

Lacey Fire District Travel Time Standards by Geographic Area 

The District has established the geographical divisions by utilizing station areas. The chart below 
identifies the travel time standard for the first arriving unit.   
 

Area Target Standard for 1st 
arriving unit, 90% of the 

time 

Types of Calls 

Station 31 – Lacey core 11 minutes EMS, wildland, fire calls 

Station 32 – Lake St Claire 15 minutes EMS, wildland, fire calls 

Station 33 – Ruddell Road 13 minutes EMS, wildland, fire calls 

Station 34 – Hawks Prairie 13 minutes EMS, wildland, fire calls 

Station 35 – Willamette Dr 14 minutes EMS, wildland, fire calls 

All station areas  17 minutes Special operations calls 

All station areas 17 minutes Full first alarm assignment 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 6 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Travel Time Performance – Emergency Medical Service responses 
 
Travel time is displayed below for the first arriving unit (engine, aid unit or truck) that can 
provide emergency medical care.  The EMS category includes motor vehicle accidents with 
injuries as well as responses to homes, businesses, care centers, etc for medical service calls.  
Travel time varies by station area, but the performance level of 90% applies to all areas.   
 
2017 

EMS – 1st arriving unit St 31 
11 mins 

St 32 
15 mins 

St 33 
13 mins 

St 34 
13 mins 

St 35 
14 mins 

Total # of calls in station area 3055 577 2842 1984 543 

For reporting compliance, 90% of the 
time, travel time is less than or equal to: 

6:52 – 6:53 
minutes 

12:51 
minutes  

8:24 
minutes 

8:11 – 8:15   
minutes 

7:38       
minutes 

 

 

5 Year Comparison 

Station 31 
Target travel time - 11 minutes 

 
 
Station 32 
Target travel time - 15 minutes 

EMS – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Total # of calls 499 495 489 706 577 

# responses less than or equal to 15 
minutes 

487 472 473 691 548 

Percentage compliance 97% 95% 96% 97% 94% 
90% of the time, travel time is less than 

or equal to: 
12:08 

minutes 
12:46 

minutes 
12:53 

minutes 
12:40 

minutes 
12:51 

minutes 

 

EMS – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Total # of calls 2674 2937 3064 2938 3055 

# responses less than or equal to 11 
minutes 

2625 2889 3008 2872 2978 

Percentage compliance 98% 98% 98% 97% 97% 

90% of the time, travel time is less than 
or equal to: 

6:54 
minutes 

6:50-6:51 
minutes 

7:00 – 7:01 
minutes 

7:07 
minutes 

6:52 – 6:53 
minutes 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 7 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

EMS – 1st Arriving Unit, continued 
 

Station 33 
Target travel time - 13 minutes 

EMS – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Total # of calls 1890 2167 2393 2375 2842 

# responses less than or equal to 13 
minutes 

1843 2110 2338 2316 2784 

Percentage compliance 97% 97% 98% 97% 98% 
90% of the time, travel time is less than 

or equal to: 8:37 – 8:38 
minutes 

8:34 
minutes 

8:20 
minutes 

8:28 
minutes 

8:24 
minutes 

 

Station 34 
Target travel time - 13 minutes 

EMS – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Total # of calls 1568 1701 1746 1870 1984 

# responses less than or equal to 13 
minutes 

1534 1658 1691 1825 1933 

Percentage compliance 98% 97% 97% 97% 97% 
90% of the time, travel time is less than 

or equal to: 
8:05 

minutes 
8:18-8:20 
minutes 

8:29 
minutes 

8:22 
minutes 

8:11 – 8:15 
minutes 

 

Station 35 
Target travel time - 14 minutes 

EMS – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Total # of calls 333 441 528 597 543 

# responses less than or equal to 14 
minutes 

322 431 517 591 531 

Percentage compliance 97% 97% 98% 99% 98% 
90% of the time, travel time is less than 

or equal to: 
10:42 – 
10:54 

minutes 

8:31  
minutes 

8:22 
minutes 

7:54 
minutes 

7:38 
minutes 

 
 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 8 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Travel Time Performance, Wildland Fire responses  
 
Travel time is displayed below for the first arriving unit – an engine or a brush truck - capable of 
initiating wildland fire suppression.  Travel time varies by station area, but the performance level 
of 90% applies to all areas.   
 
 

2017 

Wildland – 1st arriving unit St 31 
11 mins 

St 32 
15 mins 

St 33 
13 mins 

St 34 
13 mins 

St 35 
14 mins 

Total # of calls 24 5 21 26 11 

For reporting compliance, 90% of the time, 
travel time is less than or equal to: 

7:01 
minutes 

12:36        
minutes 

7 :26 
minutes 

11:14 
minutes 

10:08 
minutes 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5 Year Comparison 
 

Station 31 
Target travel time - 11 minutes 

Wildland – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Total # of calls 15 16 27 20 24 

# responses less than or equal to 11 minutes 15 16 27 20 22 

Percentage compliance 100% 100% 100% 100% 92% 

90% of the time, travel time is less than or 
equal to: 

5:03 – 5:27 
minutes 

7:36 
minutes 

8:25  
minutes 

7:33 
minutes 

7:01 
minutes 

 
 
Station 32 
Target travel time - 15 minutes 

Wildland – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Total # of calls 4 4 9 6 5 

# responses less than or equal to 13 minutes 3 4 6 6 4 

Percentage compliance 75% 100% 66% 100% 80% 
90% of the time, travel time is less than or 

equal to: 
10:41 – 30:46  

minutes 
11:42 – 12:05 

minutes 
16:03 

minutes 
10:00 

minutes 
12:36 

minutes 
 
 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 9 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Wildland – 1st Arriving Unit, continued 
 
 

Station 33 
Target travel time - 13 minutes 

Wildland – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Total # of calls 14 3 16 19 21 

# responses less than or equal to 13 minutes 13 3 15 18 21 

Percentage compliance 93% 100% 93% 94% 100% 
90% of the time, travel time is less than or 

equal to: 
10:04  

minutes 
8:15 – 
9:33 

minutes 

9:20 
minutes 

7:30 
minutes 

7:26 
minutes 

 
 

Station 34 
Target travel time - 13 minutes 

Wildland – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Total # of calls 29 42 42 29 26 

# responses less than or equal to 13 minutes 29 41 41 28 24 

Percentage compliance 100% 97% 97% 96% 92% 
90% of the time, travel time is less than or 

equal to: 
6:51 

minutes 
8:38 – 8:41 

minutes 
8:18 – 8:45 

minutes 
8:56 

minutes 
11:14 

minutes 
 
 

Station 35 
Target travel time - 14 minutes 

Wildland – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Total # of calls 8 6 12 7 11 

# responses less than or equal to 14 minutes 8 6 12 7 10 

Percentage compliance 100% 100% 100% 100% 90% 

90% of the time, travel time is less than or 
equal to: 

6:02 – 8:13 
minutes 

6:48 
minutes 

6:22 
minutes 

7:52 
minutes 

10:08 
minutes 

 
 
 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 10 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Travel Time Performance, Fire Suppression responses (all fires except wildland) 
 
Travel time for the first arriving fire engine is displayed below.  All types of fires except 
wildland fires are included in this information.  Travel time varies by station area, but the 
performance level of 90% applies to all areas. 
 
 

2017 

Fire Suppression –  
1st arriving unit 

St 31 
11 mins 

St 32 
15 mins 

St 33 
13 mins 

St 34 
13 mins 

St 35 
14 mins 

Total # of calls 37 8 28 44 6 

For reporting compliance, 90% of the 
time, travel time is less than or equal 

to: 

7:02 
minutes 

9:43 
minutes 

8:32 
minutes 

7:52 
minutes 

5:58 
minutes 

 
 
 
 
 

5 Year Comparison 
 

 
Station 31 
Target travel time - 11 minutes 

Fire Suppression – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Total # of calls 47 53 55 42 37 

# responses less than or equal to 11 
minutes 

47 51 54 42 36 

Percentage compliance 100% 96% 98% 100% 97% 

90% of the time, travel time is less than 
or equal to: 

7:30 
minutes 

5:59 – 6:25 
minutes 

6:34 – 6:37 
minutes 

8:19 - 8:36 
minutes 

7:02 
minutes 

 
 

Station 32 
Target travel time - 15 minutes 

Fire Suppression – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Total # of calls 10 8 12 5 8 

# responses less than or equal to 15 
minutes 

10 8 10 5 7 

Percentage compliance 100% 100% 83% 100% 87% 

90% of the time, travel time is less than 
or equal to: 

13:27 
minutes 

11:17  
minutes 

13:07- 16:12 
 minutes 

13:37- 13:47 
 minutes 

9:43 
minutes 

 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 11 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Fire Suppression – 1st Arriving Unit, continued 
 

Station 33 
Target travel time - 13 minutes 

Fire Suppression – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Total # of calls 27 32 46 34 28 

# responses less than or equal to 13 
minutes 

27 32 45 34 26 

Percentage compliance 100% 100% 97% 100% 93% 
90% of the time, travel time is less than 

or equal to: 
7:44 

minutes 
 7:19 
minutes 

6:39 
minutes 

7:07 - 7:37 
minutes 

8:32 
minutes 

 
 

Station 34 
Target travel time - 13 minutes 

Fire Suppression – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Total # of calls 39 25 49 58 44 

# responses less than or equal to 13 
minutes 

38 25 49 58 44 

Percentage compliance 97% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
90% of the time, travel time is less than 

or equal to: 
7:15 

minutes 
5:13 – 5:27 

minutes 
8:11 

minutes 
8:14 

minutes 
7:52 

minutes 
 
 

Station 35 
Target travel time - 14 minutes 

Fire Suppression – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Total # of calls 5 3 8 10 6 

# responses less than or equal to 14 
minutes 

5 3 8 10 6 

Percentage compliance 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
90% of the time, travel time is less than 

or equal to: 
6:02 – 13:15 

minutes 
3:46 – 4:22 

minutes 
4:59 

minutes 
6:45 

minutes 
5:58 

minutes 
 
       



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 12 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Travel Time Performance, Special Operations responses 

Special operations responses include rescue calls and hazardous materials responses.  For these 
types of calls, the data reflects the first fire engine to arrive on scene; a fire engine is equipped to 
initiate action for special operations calls.  Additional resources may be requested, but this 
information signifies the first arriving apparatus appropriate to the incident.  In the data below,  
Lacey Fire District has set a performance standard for all station areas of 17 minutes for the first 
unit to arrive, with a reliability of 90% of the time. 

 

2017 

Special Operations –  
1st arriving unit 

St 31 
17 mins 

St 32 
17 mins 

St 33 
17 mins 

St 34 
17 mins 

St 35 
17 mins 

Total # of calls 14 2 13 20 13 

For reporting compliance, 90% of the time, 
travel time is less than or equal to: 

7:22 
minutes 

14:45 
minutes 

9:19 
minutes 

10:32 
minutes 

8:14 
minutes 

 
 
 
 

5 Year Comparison 
 

All station areas 

Special Ops – 1st arriving unit 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Total # of calls 57 53 57 85 62 

# responses less than or equal to 17 
minutes 

56 53 55 85 62 

Percentage compliance 98% 100% 96% 100% 100% 

90% of the time, travel time is less than 
or equal to: 

10:26 
minutes 

9:07 
minutes 

10:07 – 10:20 
minutes 

9:43 – 9:48 
minutes 

10:17 
minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 13 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Travel Time Performance, Structure Fire responses, Full First Alarm Assignment 
  
The District has defined a full first alarm assignment for a residential structure fire as 3 engines, 
a ladder truck, a Battalion Chief, an EMS vehicle, and a Chief Officer.   The performance 
standard for a full first alarm assignment is that all units required for a full first alarm assignment 
arrive within 17 minutes, 90% of the time.  This applies to all station areas. 
 
2017 

Full 1st alarm assignment,  
 for a structure fire 

St 31 
17 mins 

St 32 
17 mins 

St 33 
17 mins 

St 34 
17 mins 

St 35 
17 mins 

Total # of calls to residential structure fires 12 3 12 12 0 

# of calls that had full 1st alarm assignment 
on scene within 17 minutes or less 

4 0 5 3  

Percentage compliance 33% 0% 41% 25% NA 
 

 
 

 
 

5 Year Comparison 
 
 

All station areas 

Full 1st alarm assignment,  
for a structure fire 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Total # of calls to residential structure fires 37 36 56 47 39 

# full first alarm assignments responses 
less than or equal to 17 minutes 

12 12 21 21 12 

Percentage compliance 32% 33% 37% 44% 31% 

  
This information reflects calls that are classified within the National Fire Incident Reporting 
System (NFIRS) as “structure fires,” however the NFIRS system requires fires that are out on 
arrival and very minor fires such as one involving only siding to be classified as “structure” fires.  
Using this system provides consistency, however it also creates a situation where the numbers 
reported appear to show that Lacey Fire is below expected performance.  The actuality is that 
when Lacey Fire responds to one of these more minor calls and discovers that a full first alarm is 
not needed, resources are turned back; artificially creating less-than-expected performance 
numbers. There are an additional 12 calls where one or more units was cancelled, thus a full first 
alarm assignment did not arrive. 
 
 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 14 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Predictable Consequences 

Extended time and insufficient resources are the enemies of successful outcomes on emergency 
responses.  A critical point for emergency incidents is around 6-8 minutes from the time of 
dispatch.  In heart attacks, brain death occurs around 4-6 minutes.  In a structure fire a condition 
called flashover - where survivability drops to nearly zero and fire spreads explosively 
throughout the structure - occurs around 8 minutes.    

In 2017, 90% of the time, the first arriving engine was at a fire scene (not including wildland) 
within 10 minutes 32 seconds from time of dispatch (turnout time and travel time combined). 

Predictable consequences for a fire, as time passes without intervention, are fire growth that 
leads to decreased survivability and increased fire damage and property loss.  For a medical call, 
predictable outcomes of later intervention include decreased likelihood of successful 
resuscitation; increased risk of death from bleeding, strokes, or serious medical problems; 
decreased survivability from major trauma such as in a motor vehicle accident; and the 
possibility of prolonged recovery and rehabilitation should the patient survive the medical 
emergency. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Lacey Fire District Response Time Compliance Report for 2017 
 

 -------------------------------------------------------- Page 15 ------------------------------------------------------------ 

Plan for Achieving Compliance 
Fundamentally, significant improvements in response times are gained through an increased 
number of staffed units readily available to respond and/or the strategic distribution of fire 
stations within geographic areas.  As call volume has continued to increase (nearly 10% since 
2015), the number of immediately available staffed units has been increasingly challenged by 
overlapping responses. 

In 2012 the District implemented an Operational Plan with strategic distribution of resources 
based on call volume, insurance rating requirements and District needs.  This plan identified 
average response time goals for all calls in station areas.  This operational plan remains in effect 
and performance related to this plan is shown below. 

Operational Response Plan goals - Average Response Time (alarm to arrival), for all Calls in District area 

 Apparatus 
staffed 

Time Goal 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Station 31 
 (Franz St) 

 Engine 31 
 Ladder 

Truck 31 
 Battalion 

31 
 Medic 3 

6:00 – 7:00 
minutes 

6:25  
minutes 

6:19  
minutes 

6:24 
minutes 

6:16 
minutes 

Station 32  
(Yelm 
Highway) 

 9:00 – 11:00 
minutes 

11:03 
minutes 

10:58 
minutes 

10:39 
minutes 

11:05 
minutes 

Station 33  
(Mullen Rd) 

 Engine 33 
 Aid Unit 33 

(peak hours) 

7:00 – 8:00 
minutes 

7:44 
minutes 

7:40 
minutes 

7:35 
minutes 

7:34 
minutes 

Station 34 
(Steilacoom Rd) 

 Engine 34 
 Medic 6 

7:00 – 8:00 
minutes 

7:00 
minutes 

7:04 
minutes 

6:48 
minutes 

6:57 
minutes 

Station 35 
(Willamette) 

 Engine 35 9:00 minutes 7:06 
minutes 

 

7:12 
minutes 

 

6:53 
minutes 

6:55 
minutes 

 

 

The addition of a peak time Aid Unit in 2017 allowed 
the District to continue to meet nearly all response time 
goals set forth in the Operational Plan despite an 
increase in call volume of approximately 75 calls per 
month.  Adopted performance standards were also met 
and exceeded in most cases. 

























FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT NO. 3 
Thurston County, Washington 

(Lacey Fire District #3) 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 860-04-18 
National Volunteer Week 2018 

WHEREAS, The District’s story began with Volunteers and since that time 
our service has been profoundly shaped by the continuing presence of 
Volunteers, the selfless individuals whose enduring spirit of service make our 
Community a safer place to live, raise families, work and play; and 

WHEREAS, Last year, more than 60 Volunteers gave of themselves 
through service to the District in a variety of capacities.  The compassion and 
dedication of these individuals is a testament to the generosity of the American 
Spirit.  In these changing times, we are coming together and renewing the 
principle that we are our brothers’ and sisters’ keeper; and 

WHEREAS, the entire Community benefits through the selfless dedication 
of our Volunteers; and 

WHEREAS, giving of oneself in service to another empowers the giver 
and the recipient; and 

WHEREAS, Volunteers were instrumental in our past and are vital to our 
future; 

NOW THEREFORE, We, the Board of Fire Commissioners of Lacey Fire 
District Three, do hereby proclaim April 15-21, 2018, as National Volunteer Week 
at Lacey Fire District Three to celebrate the profound impact of Volunteers and 
encourage our Community to discover their own power to make a difference. 

 
_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Chairperson       Commissioner 

_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Vice Chairperson      Commissioner 

_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Commissioner       Date 
 
ATTEST:       _______________________________ 

  Secretary 


	04 05 2018 BoFC Agenda
	Thurston County
	Fire District Three
	Agenda for the Board of Fire Commissioners
	Regular Meeting
	April 5, 2018
	5:30 pm



	03 15 2018 BoFC Draft Minutes
	03 29 2018  BoFC Special Meeting Minutes
	AP 4A 2018 Warrants
	2018 03B County List
	Vehicle  Surplus declaration 04 05 2018
	2017 Performance Report Final
	Vol week Resolution 2018
	ADP8AD6.tmp
	Thurston County
	Fire District Three
	Agenda for the Board of Fire Commissioners
	Regular Meeting
	April 5, 2018
	5:30 pm






